
COVENTRY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
APPROVED MINUTES 

MEETING OF THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2008 
 
Members Present: Larry Pietrantonio, Chairman 
 Kathleen Ryan, Vice Chairman 
 Cheryl Trudon, Secretary 
 John Barrett 
 Mary Kortmann 
 Richard Williams 
 
Members Absent: Michael Whitham 
 
Administrators Present: Dr. Donna Bernard, Superintendent  
 Sherry Holmes, Fiscal Services Director 
 Judith Richard, Pupil & Staff Support Services 
 
Also present were Marybeth Moyer, CGS Principal; David Petrone, GHR Principal; Michele 
Mullaly, CNH Principal; Scott Sadinsky, CNH Assistant Principal; Troy Hopkins, CHS 
Principal; Gina Olearczyk, Teacher on Assignment; several citizens; and several CHS 
students. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
By: Chairman, L. Pietrantonio at 7:34 p.m. 
Place: Administration Building Conference Room 

 
II. SALUTE THE FLAG 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by L. Pietrantonio 
 
After the Pledge, L. Pietrantonio asked for a Moment of Silence in remembrance of the 
events of September 11, 2001.  A moment of silence was held. 

 
  

III. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS 
 

Pam Sewell of Flanders Road said she had a quick question regarding special education 
students and wanted to confirm the number of “outplaced” students.  Dr. Bernard replied 
that Ms. Richard would include that in her presentation this evening.   
Ms. Sewell was very concerned about the minutes and how vague they were.  In 
particular, she had attended the Transportation Committee meeting in August where she 
believed it was stated the Committee would forward the routes to the Board for approval.  
She said she reviewed the minutes from the August 28 Board of Education meeting and 
did not see where the Board addressed the routes at the meeting.  She wanted to know if 
the routes had ever been approved or if there had been any changes since school started.  
She wanted to know if the Board even reviewed the routes.  In addition, she commented 
on the Board’s “abbreviated” agenda.  She said she is concerned that Board members 
cannot speak at meetings because the Report of Board Members section has been removed 
from the agenda.  She said she would also like to see the communications to the Board 
listed on the agenda.  L. Pietrantonio stated that the agenda has not changed and the 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 1 of 9 



minutes have not changed.  He added that by law only the motions need to be posted for 
the public.  Ms. Sewell said the Board should try and tell the public as much as they can. 
 
J. Barrett asked if Report of Board Members could be added to the agenda and the 
Transportation Committee minutes be discussed.  L. Pietrantonio stated a motion would 
be needed. 

 
MOTION:  To add Report of Board Members 
 By:  J. Barrett Seconded:  R. Williams  
 Result:  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
L. Pietrantonio stated this would fall before the Executive Session. 
 
Audrey Smith of 861 Dunn Road spoke as a representative of the Bolton Coventry Lyman 
Co-op Hockey Team Booster Club.  She said she was present this evening to talk to the 
Board about fundraising.  She continued that Coventry is the largest school that 
participates in the hockey team, including having the most players on the team, but 
Coventry is not funding the team.  She said both of the other schools help in funding.  She 
said the booster club is not asking for a lot of money, but the fee for the families is quite 
large and she is requesting that Coventry consider funding the team. 
 
Catalina Veerasammy, 104 Hannah Lane said she was present to express her concern 
about the students riding to and from school on buses that are incredibly overcrowded.  
She said her son rides on bus 15 where they have to triple up and there is a child on the 
floor, which is unacceptable.  She requested the Board do something immediately to 
rectify the situation.  C. Trudon asked if the ride was equally crowded to and from school 
and if it was a middle school bus.  Ms. Veerasammy responded yes. 
 

 
IV. REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 

A. Information:  “Coventry Pride” – Superintendent Long-term Goals & Annual 
Objectives 2008-2009. 

Dr. Bernard began by saying the goals for 2008-09 have been developed by the 
Administrative Council and she was presenting them this evening for public review.  (The 
Goal document is attached to the minutes.)   She reminded the Board that the same five 
categorical areas were the basis for the goals and that the Administrator goals and their 
staff goals all support the achievement of these goals and objectives.  She highlighted a 
couple of the goals from each section.   
She stated that under these categorical areas, if the efforts are accomplished this year, it 
will have been Herculean steps forward for the system.  She commended the 
administrators and staff who have the goals as their boiler plate. 
R. Williams said it was nice to see the goals reflecting some of the challenges that the 
Board has been discussing. 
J. Barrett asked if it was possible to ask questions at the next meeting in order to allow 
time to absorb all of the information.  L. Pietrantonio said yes.  It was said it would be 
placed under Old Business at the next meeting. 
J. Barrett asked if these are the Superintendent’s goals specifically, or are they the 
Board’s goals for which they must take action.  Dr. Bernard replied the goals are for the 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 2 of 9 



Board’s information only.  She added it is a compilation of all of the data she has received 
form the Board and the public.  J. Barrett asked if they were the Board goals.  It was said 
no.   
 
B. Information:  Special Education Programs & Practices – Judith Richard 
Dr. Bernard reminded the Board that this presentation came out of a Board meeting last 
year when it was requested to have Ms. Richard come back and talk specifically about 
Special Education. 
Ms. Richard introduced Gina Olearczyk as a Teacher-on-Assignment working one day a 
week with the PSSS department.  She stated that Ms. Olearczyk would give a brief 
presentation of an overview of the history of Special Education law.  Ms. Olearczyk 
started with Key Terminology, she moved on to a brief Legislative History, she next 
summarized the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement ACT (IDEIA), and 
finally reviewed the key provisions of the IDEIA.   
Ms. Richard focused her comments on district outplacements and the cost of 
outplacements to the districts.  She reviewed the different outplacement scenarios that 
the district is facing with DCF outplacements, the meaning of nexus towns, and the state 
mandated costs for which Coventry is responsible.  She said the outplacement number is 
extremely fluid and can change on a daily basis.   
There was discussion surrounding the Per Pupil Expenditure figure and how it can 
change mid-year.  Ms. Holmes commented that it can change once the audit is done at the 
end of December 2008.  J. Barrett wanted to know if it was possible to anticipate the 
increase to this figure and if that could be used when calculating the special education 
budget costs.   L. Pietrantonio responded that actual, factual numbers needed to be used.  
J. Barrett said the Board should be able to use the anticipated figure as a gage for what 
will happen.    
The Board continued to discuss the different DCF outplacement situations.  Ms. Richard 
reminded the Board that she works hard to avoid outplacements at all levels.   
J. Barrett asked about the Nexus Town and if it is different than Coventry does that 
mean there is funding coming in from another town. 
Ms. Richard said yes the PSSS office will invoice the Nexus Town. 
M. Kortmann asked where the Board sees the tuition that is received from the Nexus 
Town. 
S. Holmes said you see it in the form of an increase to appropriations approved by the 
Town Council.  She said in October she goes with the PSSS Director to the Town Council 
with a list of figures and all of the towns from which Coventry will be receiving tuition.  
The Town Council approves the increase to appropriations.  She said the tuition comes in 
directly to offset the salaries that are already in place in the budget for the special 
education services related to those students. 
J. Barrett asked if this was a “reimbursement” for money that has been expended.  Ms. 
Holmes said yes.   
The Board discussed the costs of pupils for which Coventry receives tuition and the 
appropriation increases due to the tuition.   

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 3 of 9 



J. Barrett asked for a scenario in writing to help the Board understand how the entire 
process works.  R. Williams suggested that last year be used as an example.  Ms. Holmes 
said she would comply.  
J. Barrett asked if the new autism program at CGS was going to be addressed this 
evening.  Ms. Richard gave a brief history of how the autism program came to happen.   
J. Barrett said a problem exists when at one time it was said this school was bulging and 
now there is room to add something new by giving up two classrooms.  J. Barrett wanted 
to know if the Board had voted on accepting this program.   
J. Barrett said it was inappropriate that he had to find out about the program, as a Board 
member, through a newspaper article.  He said he was disturbed this was not brought to 
the Board before this school year and now the program has already begun.   
R. Williams agreed that this is a third party program that was started without the 
Board’s approval. 
The Board discussed whether this constituted a curriculum change.  Ms. Richard said 
since the program was not Coventry’s program, it was not Coventry’s curriculum. 
Dr. Bernard said one will find an extensive history in this district of dozens and dozens of 
programs being implemented under the supervision of district staff in collaboration with 
outside agencies.  She said if the Board wants every collaborative program to be brought 
before the Board for authorization, it would be a shift in past practice.   
J. Barrett said he thought that would be appropriate.  R. Williams said based on the focus 
on special education in the town, something of this magnitude should have been brought 
to the Board. 
Dr. Bernard said if the Board would like to get agreement and say anytime there is a 
collaborative program using district resources the Board would need to authorize it, the 
Board needs to be in agreement and make that decision. 
C. Trudon said she does not want that to happen.  She said Board members are not 
available for these types of programmatic decisions on a daily basis and the 
Administration is paid to make these decisions. 
M. Kortmann agreed saying the Board pays staff to use resources wisely for the benefit of 
the students and the Board should let them do their jobs. 
J. Barrett said it is a reasonable expectation of the Board to have these types of programs 
brought before the Board via a presentation and a question and answer session.  He said 
it was unreasonable to hear about it from a newspaper article. 
Dr. Bernard said the topic was addressed during the goal presentations a year ago.   
The Board discussed when the item was or was not discussed within the last year. 
It was said an update on the EASTCONN autism program would be brought before the 
Board after the first quarter. 
 

VIII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. VOTE:  Approve Minutes of August 28, 2008 
MOTION: To Approve the Minutes of August 28, 2008  
 By:  K. Ryan Seconded:  C. Trudon 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 4 of 9 



 J. Barrett asked which version.  K. Ryan stated the ones that were not posted 
for the public, but were 6 pages in length.   

 J. Barrett read the following requests for changes from M. Whitham: 
 To add a sentence to the end of the fourth paragraph, page 3, under approval 

of the June 26 minutes, “If there was any confusion the Board could always 
go back to the audio tape.” 

 To add as the second sentence of the first paragraph on page 5, “He did not 
think it should come from school supplies and extra curricular activities.” 

 C. Trudon said she did not remember M. Whitham saying that.  She said, she 
is not saying he didn’t, just that she did not remember it.  She wanted to 
know who was going to go back and check the tapes for these types of things.  
Dr. Bernard said according to legal council, the Board could direct the 
secretary to review the tape or the Board can agree that it was said.   
Result:  Motion passes 5-0-1 (J. Barrett abstains). 

   
B. Discussion:  Approval of Minutes Procedure 
R. Williams commented that the Fiscal Minutes were very detailed, which was very 
helpful.  C. Trudon said it was because it the first time they were recorded by a clerk. 
L. Pietrantonio said he has authorized Dr. Bernard to post for a clerk to take the 
subcommittee minutes.  Dr. Bernard said it is very hard to find someone to fill these types 
of positions, but they will continue to try. 
C. Trudon does not think minutes should be adjusted via emails, because the comments 
could be never ending.  She continued saying the minutes are summaries and they are not 
word for word. 
L. Pietrantonio said he has talked with the town about using the annex and scheduling 
the Board meetings there so the meetings would be broadcasted.  He said he would bring 
it up with the Board for a vote in October.  C. Trudon asked if we would be hiring a 
person to do the cameras.  L. Pietrantonio said there would be a cost, but hopefully the 
town person will continue. 
The conversation turned back to the procedures for minutes.  L. Pietrantonio said the 
options are to post the motions for the public and have the Board approve the full version 
at their meeting, or continue as usually and post the full version for the public from the 
start. 
L. Pietrantonio said his preference is to post the motions only on the website first and 
then the Board would approve the full minutes at the meeting which would be posted 
after approval. 
R. Williams said the public has the right to see the full minutes as they have been. 
Dr. Bernard commented saying she had done extensive research on minutes.  She said 
she reviewed minutes of various towns throughout the state and there were two basic 
versions, one was to post only the motions and the actions, the other was to post the more 
detailed minutes after they are approved.  
C. Trudon believed the Board should return to posting the full minutes because that is 
what is best for the public. 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 5 of 9 



K. Ryan said there could be a compromise by posting the motions and action taken, with 
the understanding that the approved complete version will be posted after the board has 
approved them. 
LP asked if there was a consensus. 
C. Trudon, M. Kortmann, and R. Williams all said they would like the full minutes posted 
for the public as has been done. 
K. Ryan restated her compromise but said she would submit to the Board’s wish. 
J. Barrett said he would like the “motion only” version posted first for the public and then 
the full version once the Board has approved them.   
L. Pietrantonio said he would like the “motion only” version posted first also.   
Since the consensus was three to three, L. Pietrantonio said he would acquiesce and the 
full version of the minutes would be posted for the public as has been the practice. 
 
 

XII. REPORT OF BOARD MEMBERS 
J. Barrett wanted to address the minutes of the Transportation Committee from August 6 
and to reconcile the minutes with the fact that the Board did not approve the bus routes.  
He said he believed the minutes are extremely inaccurate in one specific area.  He 
believed there was a motion at the meeting which was not recorded in the minutes.  He 
said he made a motion at the meeting to recommend to the Board of Education to approve 
the bus routes as submitted and C. Trudon seconded and it was unanimously voted on. 
Dr. Bernard said the routes are generally authorized by the Transportation Committee 
and they have not been in recent history presented to the Board as a whole.  Dr. Bernard 
asked for clarification as to what the Committee discussed.  
K. Ryan said she took the minutes on August 6 and sent them to the Committee members 
for review and comment.  She said she thought the comments that were made by J. 
Barrett had been incorporated into the version that was posted.  She continued saying she 
did not have the minutes in front of her and as such she was at a disadvantage.   
J. Barrett handed a copy to K. Ryan.  K. Ryan stated that it would have been good for the 
Board to know about this conversation ahead of time; as such the Chairman could have 
put it on the agenda.   
J. Barrett said the minutes did not reflect any motions.  K. Ryan said the sentence that 
was changed was that the Committee agreed to submit the school bus routes for 
publication.  J. Barrett said that was not done by the committee.  C. Trudon said she 
thought the committee had agreed to that.   
J. Barrett continued saying the motion was removed from the original minutes and that it 
was a legal motion.  He also said a subcommittee does not have the right to make any 
decisions for the Board of Education, but can only make recommendations. 
The members continued to discuss the details of what happened at the Transportation 
Committee meeting. 
Dr. Bernard said many committees do not go to the Board of Education for authorization, 
examples being the Expulsion Committee or the Grievance Committee.  She said this is 
the history.   

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 6 of 9 



J. Barrett said regardless, he felt a motion was made and seconded and unanimously 
voted on and it was not recorded and not forwarded to the Board of Education.   
K. Ryan again said she thought she changed the minutes according to the 
recommendation she had received from J. Barrett via email.  J. Barrett disagreed.  C. 
Trudon said all members agreed that the routes would be published. 
J. Barrett asked audience member Pam Sewell if she recalled the happenings at the 
Transportation Committee.  L. Pietrantonio found him Out of Order. 
J. Barrett said he believes the reality is a legal motion was made at the meeting and it 
was not recorded.   
K. Ryan said she thought she had recorded the change requested by J. Barrett and that 
what she did was sufficient and appropriate. 
It was stated that the Transportation Committee is scheduled to meet on Wednesday, 
September 17 and the minutes could be discussed at that meeting. 
The Board discussed at length whether the sub-committees should have clerks recording 
the minutes.   
L. Pietrantonio asked that Dr. Bernard cost out someone to take minutes for the 
subcommittees and bring the information for the Board’s consideration. 
 

 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MOTION: Pursuant to CGS-1-200(c)(6)(A), the Board of Education will go into 
Executive Session for discussion related to the negotiations for the 
Para-educator Agreement with the Superintendent and the Fiscal 
Services Director present at 10:05 p.m. 

 By:  K. Ryan Seconded:  C. Trudon 
 Result:  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
 

XIII. OPEN SESSION 
The Board returned to Open Session at 10:15 p.m. 
 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: To adjourn the Board meeting at 10:16 p.m. 
 By:  C. Trudon Seconded:  M. Kortmann 

 Result:  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Kimberlee Michaud 
  Board Clerk 
September 25, 2008 
Approved 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 7 of 9 



Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 8 of 9 



 

Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 9 of 9 Coventry Board of Education Minutes of September 11, 2008 – Page 9 of 9 


